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ndependent Auditors keport

To the Members of Schloss Chanakya Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

We have audited the financial statements of Schloss Chanakya Private Limited (the “Company”) which
comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2023, and the statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act’) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principtes generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2023, and its loss and other
comprehensive loss, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

Management's and Board of Directors Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs, profitloss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process, .
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BSR&Co. LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)

Schloss Chanakya Private Limited

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

»  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

*  Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going concern
basis of accounting in preparation of financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

*  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2 A. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our au%t.
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BSR&Co. LLP

the

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
Schloss Chanakya Private Limited

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

in our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section
133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March 2023 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2023
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure B”.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of

Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and

according to the explanations given to us:

a.

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2023 on its financial
position in its financial statements - Refer Note 35 to the financial statements.

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

d (i) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in

(i)

the Note 39(vi) to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in
the Note 39(vii) to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from
any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Parties (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(iiiy Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate

in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (i) and (ii) above,
contain any material misstatement.

The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

As proviso to rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable for the Company
only with effect from 1 April 2023, reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable

2
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BSR&Co. LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
Schloss Chanakya Private Limited

C. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under Section 197(16) of the Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a
public company. Accordingly, the provisions of Section 197 of the Act are not applicable to the
Company. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16)
of the Act which are required to be commented upon by us.

ForBSR & Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

gt Sekt

Jaymin Sheth

Partner
Place: Mumbai Membership No.: 114583
Date: 28 September 2023 ICAI UDIN:23114583BGZDAX6269
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BSR &Co. LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Schloss Chanakya Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

(i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative

(B)
(i) (b)

(©

(d)

(e)

(i) (@

(b)

(iii)

@)

details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.
The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangibie assets.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification
of its Property, Plant and Equipment by which all property, plant and equipment are verified once
in every three years. In accordance with this programme, all property, plant and equipment were
verified during the year based on the listing as on 31 March 2022. In our opinion, this periodicity
of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature
of its assets. No discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties (other than immovable
properties where the Company is the lessee and the leases agreements are duly executed in
favour of the lessee) disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name of the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment
or intangible assets or both during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the
Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property
Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our opinion,
the frequency of such verification is reasonable and procedures and coverage as followed by
management were appropriate. No discrepancies were noticed on verification between the
physical stocks and the book records that were more than 10% in the aggregate of each class
of inventory.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in
excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of
security of current assets. In our opinion, the quarterly returns or statements filed by the
Company with such banks or financial institutions are in agreement with the books of account
of the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any investments in companies,
firms, limited liability partnership or any other parties. The Company has not provided any
guarantee or security or advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms, limited liability
partnership or any other parties during the year. The Company has granted unsecured loans to
employees and other parties during the year in respect of which the requisite information is as
below.

Based on the audit procedures carried on by us and as per the information and explanations
given to us the Company has provided loans to employees and other parties as below:

Particulars Loans
(Rs in millions)

Aggregate amount during the year
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Schloss Chanakya Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023

(Continued)
Others 600.00
Employee Loans 0.06
Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date
Others 600.00
Employee Loans 0.06

(b)

(©

(@)

(e

®

(iv)

V)

(vi)

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
conducted by us, in our opinion the terms and conditions of the grant of loans provided during
the year are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, loans given to other parties is repayable on demand and in case
of employee loans (as per the policy of the Company loan is interest free) schedule of repayment
is stipulated. As informed to us, the Company has not demanded repayment of the loan to other
parties during the year. The payment of principal and interest have been regular where
applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there is no overdue amount for more than ninety days in respect
of loans given.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, there is no loan granted falling due during the year, which has
been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdues of existing loans given
to same parties.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, in our opinion the Company has not granted any loans either
repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment except for the
following loan to related parties as defined in Clause (76) of Section 2 of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act’):

Related Parties (Rs in millions)

Aggregate of loans
- Repayable on demand 600

Percentage of loans 99.99%

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has
complied with the provisions of Section 185 of the Act is respect of loans covered by the said
section. The Company does not have any guarantee given or security provided to which Section
185 of the Act is applicable. According to the information and explanation given to us, the
provisions of Section 186 of the Act in respect of the loan given, guarantee provided, securities
given are not applicable to the Company, since it is covered as a Company engaged in business
of providing infrastructural facilities. According to the information and explanation given to us
the there is no investment made by the Company and accordingly Section 186 in respect of
investment is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from
the public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has n
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Schloss Chanakya Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Continued)

prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act for the services
provided by it. Accordingly, clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company does not have liability in respect of Service tax, Duty of excise, Sales tax during
the year since effective 1 July 2017, these statutory dues has been subsumed into GST.

(vii) (a)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, in our opinion amounts deducted / accrued in the books of
account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Service Tax, Provident
Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Value added tax, Cess or other statutory dues
have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service
Tax, Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Value added tax, Cess or other
statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2023 for a period of more than six months from
the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, statutory dues relating to Goods and Service Tax, Provident
Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Service tax, Value added tax, Cess or other
statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of any dispute are as follows:

(viii)

(ix) (2)

(b)

©

C)

()

Name of the Nature of the Rupees in Period to which Forum where
statute dues millions the amount dispute is
relates pending
Finance Act, | Service tax 8.08 2012-2013 to | Customs Excise
1994 2014-2015 and Service Tax
Appellate
Tribunal

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions,
previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans and
borrowing or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any
bank or financial institution or government or government authority.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the
management, term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
balance sheet of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been
used for long-term purposes by the Company.

The Company does not hold any investment in any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures (as
defined under the Act) during the year ended 31 March 2023. Accordingly, ciause 3(ix)(e) is not

applicab)lg.\
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Schloss Chanakya Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Continued)

®

XC)

(b)

(xi) ()

(b)

(©

(xii)

(xii)

(xiv) (a)

(b)

(xv)

(xvi) (a)

(b)

(©

(d)

(xvii)

(xviii)

The Company does not hold any investment in any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures (as
defined under the Act) during the year ended 31 March 2023. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(f) is not
applicable.

The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments). Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the
information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company has
been noticed or reported during the course of the audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of
Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule
13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

We have taken into consideration the whistle blower complaints received by the Company during
the year while determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is a private limited company and accordingly the requirements as stipulated by
the provisions of Section 177 of the Act are not applicable to the Company. In our opinion and
according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section
188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the
financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our opinion,
the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business.

We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the period
under audit.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors
and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of india
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by
the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not part of any group (as per the provisions of the Core Investment Companies
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 as amended). Accordingly, the requirements of clause
3(xvi)(d) are not applicable.

The Company has incurred cash losses of Rs 159.68 millions in the current financial year and
Rs 1,097.05 millions in the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause

3(xviii) of the Order is not applicablﬁk
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements
of Schloss Chanakya Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Continued)

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination
of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes
us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state
that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx) The requirements as stipulated by the provisions of Section 135 are not applicable to the
Company. Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable.

ForBSR&Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

I H- st

Jaymin Sheth

Partner
Place: Mumbai Membership No.: 114583
Date: 28 September 2023 ICAI UDIN:23114583BGZDAX6269
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’'s Report on the financial statements
of Schloss Chanakya Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A)(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Schloss Chanakya
Private Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31
March 2023, based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note”).

Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the financial statements
of Schloss Chanakya Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Continued)

statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

ForBSR & Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’'s Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

S R

Jaymin Sheth

Partner
Place: Mumbai Membership No.: 114583
Date: 28 September 2023 ICAI UDIN:23114583BGZDAX6269
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SCHLOSS CHANAKYA PRIVATE LIMITED
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023

(Rupees in miltions)

Particulars Note 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3(a) 17,832.10 17,965.92
Capital work-in-progress 3(c) 25.41 5.33
Goodwill 3(d) 527.57 527.57
Other Intangible assets 3(b) 4.01 0.39
Financial assets
(i) Others S(a) 155.98 158.60
Other non-current assets 8(a) 270.58 267.30
Total non-current assets 18,815.65 18,925.11
Current assets
Inventories 9 74.17 60.29
Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 10 106.81 37.08
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 11 289.20 1,081.42
(i) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents above 12 118.28 39.57
(i1i) Loans 4 600.00 117.93
(iv) Other financial assets 5(b) 13.74 6.19
Current tax assets (net) 7 13.33 8.63
Other current assets 8(b) 123.11 107.02
Total current assets 1,338.64 1,458.13
TOTAL ASSETS 20,154.29 20,383.24
EQUITY & LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity Share Capital 13 574.23 574.23
Other equity 14 2,928.22 3,558.55
Total equity 3,502.45 4,132,78
Liabilities
Non-Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(1) Borrowings 15(a) 15,610.29 15,440.96
(ii) Other financial liabilities 16(a) 63.31 54.64
Provisions 17(a) 8.77 8.61
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 6 - -
Total non- current liabilities 15,682.37 15,504,21
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 15(b) 426.12 239.61
(i1) Trade Payables 18
a) total outstanding dues to micro and small enterprises 16.65 19.75
b) total outstanding dues other than (ii) (a) above 260.45 154.34
(iti) Other financial liabilities 16(b) 32.73 149.18
Provisions 17(b) 1.00 0.49
Other current liabilities 19 232.52 182.89
Total current liabilities 969.47 746.26
TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITIES 20,154.29 20,383.24
Significant accounting policies 1-2
The above balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 1-40
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SCHLOSS CHANAKYA PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2023

(Rupees in millions)

) For the year ended| For the year ended 31
Farsculars L 31 March 2023 March 2022
Revenue from operations 20 2,307.80 1,093.95
Other income 21 79.65 49.56
Total Income 2.387.45 1,143.51
Expenses
Consumption of food and beverages 22 186.63 117.83
Employee benefit expenses 23 391.94 302.43
Finance costs 24 1,413.81 1,311.20
Depreciation and amortisation expense 25 180.10 215.67
Other expenses 26 848.18 512.20
Total expenses 3.020.66 2,459.33
Loss before tax (633.21) (1,315.82)
Tax expense
- Current tax 5 =
- Deferred tax charge / (credit) - (241.22)
Loss after tax (633.21) (1,074.60)
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:

Remeasurements of post employment defined benefit plans 2.88 6.19
Income tax relating to these items - (1.61)
Total other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 2.88 4.58
Total comprehensive loss for the year (630.33) (1,070.02)
Earnings per equity share 28

Basic EPS (11.03) (18.71)
Diluted EPS (11.03) (18.71)
Significant accounting policies 1-2

The above balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 1-40
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SCHLOSS CHANAKYA PRIVATE LIMITED
Cash flow statement for the year ended 31 March 2023

(Rupees in millions)

(Rupees in millions)

For the year ended 31

For the year ended 31

Particulars March 2023 March 2022
Cash flows from operating activities
Loss before tax for the year (633.21) (1,315.82)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortization 180.10 215.67
Finance costs 1,413.81 1,311.20
Compensated absences required written back - 3.29)
Profit on sale of PPE - (20.08)
Net gain on account of modification in liability towards environmental clearance - (2.51)
Provision for doubtful debt - 8.94
Unrealized foreign exchange differences - (0.03)
Interest income (49.93) (16.14)
Operating cash flows before working capital changes 910.77 177.94
Working capital movements:
(Increase)/ Decrease in current and non-current loans 6.02 36.15
(Increase)/ Decrease in inventories (13.88) 441
(Increase)/ Decrease in trade receivables (69.74) (25.44)
(Increase)/ Decrease in other current and non-current assets 96.86 (44.16)
(Increase)/ Decrease in current and non-current financial assets 0.99 (1.08)
Increase/ (Decrease) in trade payables 103.01 53.63
Increase/ (Decrease) in current and non-current financial liabilities (31.88) (142.65)
Increase/ (Decrease) in other current and non-current liabilities 49.63 129.69
Increase/ (Decrease) in current and non-current provisions 3.56 2,93
Cash generated from operations 1,055.34 191.42
Income taxes paid, net 4.70) (2.34)
Net cash flows generated from operating activities (A) 1,050.64 189.08
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipments including capital work in progress (79.36) (31.58)
Sale of property. plant and equipment 4.12 20.08
Inter corporate deposit given to related parties, net (600.00) (117.93)
Interest received 43.15 10.70
Fixed/ restricted deposits with bank (placed)/ realized (76.90) (118.49)
Net cash flows used in investing activities (B) (708.99) (237.22)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from long-term borrowings 185.38 2,000.00
Repayments of long-term borrowings (192.69) (7.83)
Proceeds/ (repayments) from short-term borrowings (net) (6.19) 35.93
Interest paid (1,120.38) (902.23)
Net cash flows generated from financing activities (C) (1,133.88) 1,125.87
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (792.23) 1,077.73
Cash and cash equivalents as at beginning of the year 1,081.42 3.69
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 289.19 1,081.42
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand 1.04 1.85
Balance with banks

- in current account 49.26 115.72

- in deposit accounts with original maturity of less than 3 months 238.90 963.85
Total cash and cash equivalents (Refer note 11) 289.19 1,081.42
The above statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
As per our report of even date attached
For BSR & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the board of directors of
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SCHLOSS CHANAKYA PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of Changes in Equity for the period ended 31 March 2023
(Al amounts in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

A. Equity Share Capital

Particulars Note No.

Amount

As at 31 March 2021
Changes in equity share capital 13
As at 31 March 2022

574.23

574.23

Changes in equity share capital 13
As at 31 March 2023

574.23

B. Other Equity

Equity component of
Particulars Notes compound financial
instruments

Securities premium Retained earnings Total

Balance at 31-Mar-21 876.59

Other comprehensive income -

5.033.72 (1.281.74) 4,628.58
- 4.58 4.58

Total comprehensive income for the year -

Profit for the year -
Premium on shares issued during the year 13 -

Transactions with the owners of the Company:
Dividend F
Dividend distribution tax -

= 4.58 4.58
- (1,074.60) (1,074.60)

Balance at 31-Mar-22 13 876.59

5.033.72 (2.351.76) 3,558.55

Equity component of
Particulars Notes compound financial
instruments

Securities premium Retained earnings Total

Balance at 31-Mar-22 876.59

Other comprehensive income

5,033.72 (2,351.76) 3,558.55
2.88 2.88

Total comprehensive income for the year 14 -

Profit for the year
Premium on shares issued during the year 14

Transactions with the owners of the Company:
Dividend :
Dividend distribution tax -

- 2.88 2.88
(633.21) (633.21)

Balance at 31 March 2023 14 876.59

5.033.72 (2.982.09) 2,928.23

As per our report of even date attached

For BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 101248W/W-100022

YeH:shedl, .

Jaymin Sheth
Partner
Membership Number:114583

Place: Mumbai
Date: 28 September 2023

For and on behalf of the board of directors of
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¥,
Ydaesdoshi Sougata Kundu

Director Director

DIN: 08740006 DIN: 07091941
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SCHLOSS CHANAKYA PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

2.1

2.2

2.3

Company information

Schloss Chanakya Private Limited (“the Company™) an Indian subsidiary of BSREP 11l India Baliet I Pte. Ltd., holding company and was incorporated on
18 March 2019 under the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and started its operations effective 17 October 2019 by acquiring Delhi hotel undertaking of
HLV Limited. The Company is in the hospitality industry and operates hotel under the brand name of "THE LEELA".

Basis of preparation, critical accounting estimates and judgements, significant accounting policies and recent accounting pronouncements
The financial statements have been prepared on the following basis:

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) as prescribed under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and other provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") as
amended from time to time,

Basis of preparation

Historical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following:

« certain financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments) and contingent consideration is measured at fair value;
» assets held for sale — measured at fair value less cost to sell;

« defined benefit plans — plan assets measured at fair value; and

« share-based payments

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles of Ind AS requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions, that affect the reported balances of assets and liabilities, disclosures relating to contingent liabilities as at the date
of the financial statements and the reported amounts of income and expenses for the years presented. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

In particular, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements pertain to:

All assets and liabilities are classified as current and non-current as per Company’s normal operating cycle of 12 months which is based on the nature of
business of the Company. Current Assets do not include elements which are not expected to be realised within 1 year and Current Liabilities do not include
items which are due after 1 year, the period of 1 year being reckoned from the reporting date.

- Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets:

The Company has estimated Useful life of each class of assets based on the nature of assets, the estimated usage of the asset, the operating condition of the
asset, past history of replacement, anticipated technological changes, etc. the Company reviews the Useful life of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets as at the end of each reporting period. This reassessment may result in change in depreciation expense in future periods. Refer Note 3 for
further details.

- Impairment testing:

Goodwill, property, plant and equipment and intangible assets that are subject to depreciation/ amortisation are tested for impairment periodically including
when events occur or changes in circumstances indicate that the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is less than its carrying value. The
recoverable amount of cash generating units is higher of value-in-use and fair value less cost to sell. The calculation involves use of significant estimates
and assumptions which includes turnover and eamnings multiples, growth rates and net margins used to calculate projected future cash flows, risk-adjusted
discount rate, future economic and market conditions. Refer Note 3 for further details.

- Income Taxes:

Deferred tax assels are recognised to the extent that it is regarded as probable that deductible temporary differences can be realised. The Company
estimates deferred tax assets and liabilities based on current tax laws and rates and in certain cases, business plans, including management’s expectations
regarding the manner and timing of recovery of the related assets. Changes in these estimates may affect the amount of deferred tax liabilities or the
valuation of deferred tax assets and thereby the tax charge in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Provision for tax liabilities require judgements on the interpretation of tax legislation, developments in case laws and the potential outcomes of tax audits
and appeals which may be subject to significant uncertainty. Therefore the actual results may vary from expectations resulting in adjustments to provisions,
the valuation of deferred tax assets, cash tax settlements and therefore the tax charge in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Refer note 6 for further details.

- Defined benefit plans:

The cost of the defined benefit plans and the present value of the defined benefit obligation are based on actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit
method. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the
determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long term nature, a
defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date. Refer note 27 for
further details.

- Contingent liabilities:

Judgement is required to ascertain whether it is probable or not that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
legal claims included under contingent liabilities in note . The management assesses the probability of outflow for such items at each balance sheet date to
assess whether there is probability or not that an outflow will be required for such contingent liabilities.

- Fair Value Measurement of Derivative and other Financial Instruments:

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined by using valuation techniques. This involves significant
Judgements in the selection of a method in making assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions existing at the Balance Sheet date and in
propriate estimate of fair value when a wide range of fair value measurements are possible.




SCHLOSS CHANAKYA PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

23

2.4

2.5

a)

Critical accounting estimates and judgements (Continued)

- Lease:

Critical Judgements in determining the Lease Term: Ind AS 116 requires lessees to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease
adjusted with any option to extend or terminate the lease, if the use of such option is reasonably certain. The Company makes an assessment on the
expected lease term on a lease-by-Jcase basis and thereby assesses whether it is reasonably certain that any options to extend or terminate the contract will
be exercised. In evaluating the lease term, the Company considers factors such as any significant leasehold improvements undertaken over the lease term,
costs relating to the termination of the lease and the importance of the underlying asset to Company’s operations taking into account the location of the
underlying asset and the availability of suitable alternatives. The lease term in future periods is reassessed to ensure that the Jease term reflects the current
economic circumstances,

Ciritical Judgements in determining the Discount ate: The discount rate is generally based on the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease being
evaluated or for a portfolio of leases with similar characteristics

Going Concern
The Company has incurred a loss of Rs.633.21 millions during the year ended 31 March 2023, has accumulated losses of Rs.2982.09 millions and net

worth of Rs.3502.45 millions at 31 March 2023.

This year the Company has seen quite an improvement in business over the previous year, as this year the Company has fully recovered from the impact of
COVID-19.

Based on these initiatives undertaken by the Company, there is adequate cash balance to meet its obligations.

The Company has assessed its capital and financial resources, profitability and overall liquidity position. In developing the assumptions and estimates
relating to the future uncertainties in the economic conditions, the Company as at the date of approval of these financial statements has used intenal and
external sources of information and based on current estimates, expects to recover the carrying amounts of assets.

In view of the above, the Company believes that it will be able to meet all its contractual obligations and liabilities as and when they fall due in near future
and accordingly, these financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

Significant accounting policies

Revenue recognition:

Revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or
services to a customer i.e. on transfer of control of the goods or service to the customer. Revenue from sales of goods or rendering of services is net of
Indirect taxes, returns and discounts.

Income from operations-

Rooms, Food and Beverage & Banquets: Revenue is recognised at the transaction price that is allocated to the performance obligation. Revenue includes
room revenue, food and beverage sale and banquet services which is recognised once the rooms are occupied, food and beverages are sold and banquet
services have been provided as per the contract with the customer.

Space and Shop rentals: Rentals basically consists of rental revenue earned from letting of spaces for retails and office at the properties. These contracts
for rentals are generally of short term in nature. Revenue is recognised in the period in which services are being rendered.

Other Allied services: In relation to laundry income, communication income, health club income, airport transfers income and other allied services, the
revenue has been recognised by reference to the time of service rendered.

Some contracts include multiple performance obligations, such as sale of food and beverages and room revenue. These are considered as separate
performance obligations as, the customer can benefit from the good or service on its own and the good or services are distinct within the context of the
contract. Where the contracts include multiple performance obligations, the transaction price will be allocated to each performance obligation based on the
stand-alone selling prices.

A contract asset viz. Unbilled revenue is recognized in respect of those performance obligations where the control of the goods has been transferred to the
buyer, and only the act of invoicing is pending.

A contract liability is recognised where the customer has paid in advance, but the services are yet to be rendered by the Company or the payment exceeds
the services rendered.

The company does not expect to have any contracts where the period between the transfer of the promised goods or services to the customer and payment
by the customer exceeds one year. As a consequence, the company does not adjust any of the transaction prices for the time value of money.

Interest: Interest income is accrued on a time proportion basis using the effective interest rate method.

Dividend: Dividend income is recognised when the Company’s right to receive the amount is established.




SCHLOSS CHANAKYA PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

b) Employee benefits:
Short term-Employment Benefits:
The costs of all short-term employee benefits (that are expecled to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees
render the related service) are recognised during the period in which the employee renders the related service. The accruals for employee entitlements to
benefits such as salaries, bonuses and annual leave represent the amounts which the Company has a present obligation to pay as a result of the employee’s
services and the obligation can be measured reliably. The accruals have been calculated at undiscounted amounts based on current salary levels at the
Balance Sheet date.
Defined contribution plan:
The Company’s contribution to provident fund and employee state insurance scheme are considered as defined contribution plans and are recognized as an
expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to the contributions. The contributions are accounted for as defined contribution plans and
the contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash
refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.
Defined benefit plans:
The Company’s gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Company’s net obligation in respect of the gratuity benefit scheme is calculated by
estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to
determine its present value.

The present value of the obligation under such defined benefit plan is determined based on actuarial valuation by an independent actuary using the
Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each
unit separately to build up the final obligation.

The obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The discount rates used for determining the present value of the
obligation under defined benefit plan, are based on the market yiclds on government securities as at the balance sheet date. When the calculation results in
a benefit to the Company, the recognised asset is limited to the net total of any unrecognised actuarial losses and past service costs and the present value of
any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in Other
Comprehensive Income and reflected in retained eamings and will not be reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss

Other long-term employee benefits:

The Company provides for encashment of leave or leave with pay subject to certain rules. The employees are entitled to accumulate leave subject to certain
limits for future encashment / availment. The Company makes provision for compensated absences based on an independent actuarial valuation carried out
at the end of the year. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

¢) Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation (other than freehold land) and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

All property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost. Cost includes the acquisition cost or the cost of construction, including duties and non-
refundable taxes, expenses directly related to bringing the asset to the location and condition neccssary for making them operational for their intended use.
Initial estimate of costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located is also included if there is an obligation to restore
it.

Subsequent expenditure relating to property, plant and equipment is capitalised only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with these
will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably,

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable
amount.

Depreciation is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss so as to expense the cost of assets (other than frechold land and properties under construction)
less their residual values over their useful lives, using the straight line method, as per the useful life prescribed in Schedule 1I to the Companies Act, 2013
except in respect of the following categories of assets, in whose case the life of the assets had been re-assessed as under based on technical evaluation,
taking into account the nature of the asset, the estimated usage of the asset, the operating conditions of the asset, past history of replacement, anticipated
technological changes, manufacturers’ warranties and maintenance support, etc.

Based on the above, the estimated useful lives of the property, plant and equipment and intangible are as follows:

Category of assets Useful life as per Schedule I1 (in years) Useful life as per Technical Assessment (in years)
Buildings 60 years 60 years

Plant and machinery 15 years 3 years to 15 years

Furniture and fixtures 8 years 8 years

Office equipments 5 years Same as Schedule I

Computers 3 years Same as Schedule [

Data processing units 6 years Same as Schedule 11

Vehicles 6 years Same as Schedule 11

Freehold land is not depreciated. The assets” useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the Balance Sheet date and the effect of any changes in
estimates are accounted for on a prospective basis. An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or Joss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

For transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its property, plant and equipment recognised as of March 18,
2019 (transition date) measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as its deemed cost as of the transition date.

Capital work in progress represents projects under which the property, plant and equipment are not yet ready for their intended use and are carried at cost
determined as aforesaid.




SCHLOSS CHANAKYA PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

d)

e)

g)

h)

Intangible assets
Intangible assets include cost of acquired software and Goodwill . Intangible assets are initially measured at acquisition cost including any directly

attributable costs of preparing the asset for its intended use

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over their estimated useful life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an
indication that the asset may be impaired. The estimated useful life used for amortising intangible assets is as under

Class of Asset Estimated Useful Life
Computer Software 6 years

An intangible asset is de-recognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Gains or
losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset, and are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised.

For transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with carrying value of all of its intangible assets recognised as of March 18, 2019 (transition
date) measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as its deemed cost as of the transition date.

Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability at the date at which the leased assct is available for use by the company. Assets
and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of the following lease
payments:

+ fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable

« variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the commencement date

« amounts expected to be payable by the group under residual value guarantees

« the exercise price of a purchase option if the group is reasonably certain to exercise that option, and

« payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options are also included in the measurement of the liability. The lease payments are
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is generally the case for leases in the company, the
lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used, being the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of
similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms, security and conditions.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

- the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability

- any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any Jease incentives received

» any initial direct costs, and

» restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset's useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis. If the company is
reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment and all leases of low-value assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in profit or
loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less.

Impairment of assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impainment, or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s catrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period.

Foreign currency translation
(i) Functional and presentation currency
The functional currency of the Company is Indian Rupee.

(ii) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions at year end exchange rates are generally recognised in profit or loss. They are deferred in
equity if they relate to qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net investment hedges or are attributable to part of the net investment in a foreign
operation. A monetary item for which settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur in the foreseeable future is considered as a part of the entity’s net
investment in that foreign operation.

Foreign exchange differences arising on foreign currency borrowings are presented in the statement of profit and loss, within finance costs. All other
foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the statement of profit and loss on a net basis within other gains/(losses).

Inventories

Stock of food and beverages and stores and operating supplies are carried at the lower of cost (computed on a Weighted Average basis) or net realisable
value, Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and selling expenses. Cost
includes the fair value of consideration paid including duties and taxes (other than those refundable), inward freight, and other expenditure directly
attributable p rehase. Trade discounts and rebates are deducted in determining the cost of purchase.
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i)

i)

k)

m)

Income taxes

Income tax expense comprises current tax expense and the net change in the deferred tax asset or liability during the year. Current and deferred tax

are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income or directly in
equity,

in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in Other Comprehensive Income or directly in equity, respectively

Current Tax :

Current tax expenses are accounted in the same period to which the revenue and expenses relate. Provision for current income tax is made for the tax
liability payable on taxable income after considering tax allowances, deductions and exemptions determined in accordance with the applicable tax rates and
the prevailing tax laws.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle the asset and the liability on a net basis

Deferred Tax :

Deferred income tax is recognised using the balance sheet approach. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for deductible and taxable

temporary differences arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount in financial statements, except when the

deferred tax arises from the initial recognition of goodwill, an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and affects neither
accounting nor taxable profits or loss at the time of the transaction.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset
realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when

they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Company intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation. This may be either legal because it derives from a contract, legislation or other
operation of law, or constructive because the Company created valid expectations on the part of third parties by accepting certain responsibilities. To record
such an obligation it must be probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made for the
amount of the obligation. The amount recognised as a provision and the indicated time range of the outflow of economic benefits are the best estimate
(most probable outcome) of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheel date, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Non-current provisions are discounted for giving effect to time value of money, if material.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the
oceurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from
past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be
made.

A contingent asset is not recognised but disclosed in the financial statements where an inflow of economic benefit is probable.

Provisions, contingent assets and contingent liabilities are reviewed at each balance sheet date. '

Borrowing cost

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalised during
the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit or loss after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year
adjusting the bonus element for all the reported period arising on account of issue of equity shares on rights and including potential equity shares on
compulsory convertible debentures. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax as adjusted for dividend, interest and
other charges to expense or income (net of any attributable taxes) relating to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of equity
shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share. Ordinary shares that will be issued upon the conversion of a mandatorily convertible instrument are
included in the calculation of basic earnings per share from the date the contract is entered into.

Dividend:
Provision is made for the amount of any dividend declared, being appropriately authorised and no longer at the discretion of the entity, on or before the end
of the reporting period but not distributed at the end of the reporting period.

Financial assets

(i) Classification

The company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories

« those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through profit or loss), and

« those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income.

(i) Recognition

Regular way purghases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade-date, being the date on which the company commits to purchase or sale the
financialassel. -~ e

(ii:_)._’f'\:-I(ca_s'nrclﬁml N 2
Atinifial recagnition. the company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, § :
fransation costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fuir value through

"|_'>r‘6'ﬁf or loss are expensed in profit or loss. (o5

Finandial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are solely payment n\(ﬁ'}nc\ipal and

Thierest. e —
\ \“'\‘:I * f}
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m)

n)

o)

p)

Financial assets (Continued)

-Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the company’s business model for managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the
asset. There are three measurement categories into which the group classifies its debt instruments:

« Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost. Interest income from these financial assets is included in Other Income using the effective interest rate method. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition is recognised directly in profit or loss and presented in other gains/(losses). Impairment losses are presented as separate line
item in the statement of profit and loss.

» Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI): Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial
assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount are
taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest income and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in
profit and loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit or
loss and recognised in other gains/(losses). Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income using the effective interest rate method.
Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in other gains/(losses) and impairment expenses are presented as separate line item in statement of profit
and loss.

« Fair value through profit or loss: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at fair value through profit or loss. A
gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss is recognised in profit or loss and presented net within
other gains/(losses) in the period in which it arises. Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income.

-Equity instruments

The company subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. Where the company’s management has elected to present fair value gains and
losses on equity investments in other comprehensive income, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss following
the derecognition of the investment. Dividends from such investments are recognised in profit or loss as other income when the company’s right to receive
payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in other gain/ (losses) in the statement of profit and loss.
Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments measured at FVOC] are not reported separately from other changes in fair
value.

iv) Impairment of financial assets

The company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets carried at amortised cost and FVOCI debt
instruments. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables only, the company applies the simplified approach required by Ind AS 109, which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised
from initial recognition of the receivables.

v) Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised only when

« The company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or

» retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more
recipients.

Where the entity has transferred an asset, the company evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
asset. In such cases, the financial asset is derecognised. Where the entity has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
asset, the financial asset is not derecognised.

Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial
asset is derecognised if the group has not retained control of the financial asset. Where the company retains control of the financial asset, the asset is
continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing involvement in the financial asset.

vi) Interest income

Interest income from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is disclosed as interest income within other income. Interest income on financial
assets at amortised cost and financial assets at FVOCI is calculated using the effective interest method is recognised in the statement of profit and loss as
part of other income.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset except for financial assets that
subsequently become credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial assets the effective interest rate is applied to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset (after deduction of the loss allowance).

Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right
must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of
the company or the counterparty.

Equity Instruments
Equity instruments are recognised at the value of the proceeds, net of direct costs of the capital issue.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial
institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current

liabilities in the balance sheet.
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Q

r)

Business Combination

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for all business combinations, regardless of whether equity instruments or other assets are
acquired. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with limited exceptions, measured
initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred as excess of the-

« consideration transferred;

« amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity, and

« acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less than the fair value of the net identifiable assets of
the business acquired, the difference is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity as capital reserve provided there is clear
evidence of the underlying reasons for classifying the business combination as a bargain purchase. In other cases, the bargain purchase gain is recognised
directly in equity as capital reserve.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is deferred, the amounts payable in the future are discounted to their present value as at the date of
exchange. The discount rate used is the entity’s incremental borrowing rate, being the rate at which a similar borrowing could be obtained from an
independent financier under comparable terms and conditions.

Contingent consideration is classified either as equity or a financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial liability are subsequently remeasured to fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising from such remeasurement are recognised in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income, as appropriate.

New Standards or Other Amendments Issued but not yet Effective:

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards. There is no such notification which would have
been applicable from April 1, 2022.

Ind AS 16 - Property Plant and equipment

The amendment clarifies that excess of net sale proceeds of items produced over the cost of testing, if any, shall not be recognised in the profit or loss but
deducted from the directly attributable costs considered as part of cost of an item of property, plant, and equipment.

Ind AS 37 — Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

The amendment specifies that the ‘cost of fulfilling’ a contract comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to the contract’. Costs that related directly to a
contract can either be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (examples would be direct labour, materials) or an allocation of other costs that relate
directly to fulfilling contracts (an example would be the allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling
the contract).

None of the amendments notified by MCA which are applicable from April 1, 2022 are expected to have any material impact on the financial statements of
the Company.
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SCHLOSS CHANAKYA PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes 1o the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2023 (Continued)
(All amounts in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

4 Financial asset- Current loans
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Inter corporate deposit given to related parties 800:00 il
600.00 117.93
Loans or advances to related parties:
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Type of Borrower
Amount of
loan or % of total Loans and Amount of loan or % of the total Loans and
advance in the | Advances in the nature of | advance in the nature of | Advances in the nature of
nature of loan loans loan outstanding loans
outstanding
Related Parties * 600.00 100% 117.93 100%
* Related parties with common directors.
Note-
Loans includes Rs. 600 millions (Previous year : Rs 117.93 millions) due from companies in which any director is a director or a member details of which are set out below:
Schloss HMA Private Limited (Current year). Schloss Bangalore Private Limited (Previous year)
5 Financial asset- Others
5(a) Non Current
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Margin money deposils 71.26 71.26
Bank deposits with maturity of more than 12 months 76.67 78.48
Security deposits
Considered good- Unsecured 8.05 8.86
155.98 158.60
Note-
(i) Security deposits are primarily on account of utility deposits and rental agreements. Security deposits given to related parties amounts Lo Nil.
(if) Out of total bank deposils. fixed deposit amounting to Rs. 70.82 Mn represents fixed deposils made with bank for a period of 5 years which is given as a guarantee to MOEF for the
liability incurred towards environmental clearance
5(b) Current
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 J
To related parties (Refer Note 36)
Interest receivable 0.18 0.56
To other than related parties:
Security deposits
Considered good- Unsecured 0.96 -
Advances to employees 0.06 0.24
Interest accrued on deposits 12.54 5.39
13.74 6.19
6 Deferred tax liabilities (net)

Particulars

31 March 2023

M March 2022

The components of deferred tax balances are as follows:

(A) Deferred tax assets
Arising on account of timing differences in:

Provision for employee benefits 2.54 2.37
Borrowings 92.01 91.40
Unabsorbed depreciation / business loss (Refer note below) 369.41 418.02
Others 345 2.98
467.41 514.77
(B} Deferred tax liability
Arising on account of timing differences in:
Compulsorily Convertible Debentures 176.41 272.44
Excess of depreciation / amortisation on property. plant and equipment under 170.04 121.05
income tax laws over depreciation / amortisation provided in the books
Recognition of liabilities at fair value - 0.58
Intangible assets including Goodwill 120.96 120.69
46741 514,76

Deferred (ax assets/(liabilities) (net) - (A)-(B)

Note:

In the absence of reasonable certainty. Deferred Tax Asset on account of unabsorbed depreciation / business loss has been recognised Lo the extent il can be realised against reversal of
deferred tax liability.




SCHLOSS CHANAKYA PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2023 (Continued)

(All amounts in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

7

oo

8(a)

8(b)

10

Current (ax assels

Particulars

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Advance tax and tax deducted at source (net of provisions}

Other Assets

Non-Current

13.33

8.63

13.33

8.63

Particulars

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

To other than related parties

Capital advances 7.31 2.04

Prepaid expenses 2.30 4.29

Balances with government authorities* 260.97 260.97

Total 270.58 267.30

Balance with government authorities represents advance given to NDMC for FAR and ZAAR matter which is ongoing before the court. (Refer Note 35)

Current

Particulars l 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

To related parties (Refer Note 36)

Reimbursement receivable from related parties - 6.02

To other than related parties:

Advance to suppliers 11.54 9.50

Prepaid expenses 33.83 19.98

Insurance claim receivables - 0.24

Balances with government authorilies 3731 25.14

Unbilled revenue 4043 46.14
123.11 107.02

Inventories
rvalued ar costor NRI whichever is lower)

Particulars

31 March 2023

31 March 2022 J

Food and beverages
Stores and operating supplies

Note- Inventory written off during the year amounts to Rs. Nil (PY amount: Nil}

Trade receivables

42.96 35.54
31.21 24.75
74.17 60.29

Particulars

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Receivables from related parties (Refer Note 36)
Trade receivables- other than related parties
Less: Loss allowance

Total receivables

0.40 0.22
113.42 46.61
(1.01) (9.75)
106.81 37.08




SCHLOSS CHANAKYA PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 (Continued)

10 Trade receivables (Continued)

As at 31 March 2023

Outstanding for following periods from date of transaction

Particulars Less than 6 6 months - 1 More than 3 Total
1-2 years 2 -3 years
months year years
97.25 7.43 213 - - 106.81

(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables - considered good
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have significant increase in credit risk - -
(iii) Undisputed Trade receivable — credit impaired - - 312 1.14 2.74 7.01
(iv) Disputed Trade receivables - considered good - - B

(v) Disputed Trade receivables — which have significant increase in credit risk - -

Less: provision for doubtful debts - - (3.12) (1.14) (2.74) {7.01)
Total 97.25 743 2.13 - - 106,81

As at 31 March 2022

Outstanding for following periods from date of transaction

Particulars Lessthan6 6 months- 1 More than 3 Total
1-2years 2-3 years
maonths year Nears

(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables - considered good 37.08 - - - - 17.08
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have significant increase in credit risk - . . - = .
(iii) Undisputed Trade receivable — credit impaired 0.69 9.06 - - 9.75
(iv) Disputed Trade receivables - considered good - . - N = -
(v) Disputed Trade receivables — which have significant increase in credit risk B - - - -
Less: provision for doubtful debts (0.69) (9.06) - - . 9.75)
Total 37.08 5 - = - 37.08




SCHLOSS CHANAKYA PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2023 (Continued)

(All amounts in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

1

12

a)

b)

¢)

d)

€

Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 Mareh 2022
Cash on hand 1.04 1.85
Balances with banks

- in current accounts 49.26 11572
- in deposit accounts with original maturity of less than 3 months 238.90 963.85

Note:

Cash and bank balances are denominated and held in Indian Rupees and the balance with banks mentioned above is of unrestricted nature

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

| a1 March 2023 |

31 March 2022 |

Particulars
Other bank balances
- Fixed deposits 118.28 39.57
118.28 39.57
Equity Share Capital
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Authorised
65.500.000 (Previous Year: 65.500.000) equity shares of Rs.10 each 655.00 655.00
655.00 65500
Issued, subscribed and paid up
57.423,076 (Previous Year: 57.423,076) equity shares of Rs,10 each, fully paid up 574.23 574.23
574.23 574.23
Reconciliation of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year:
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
At the beginning of the year 5,74,23,076 574.23 5,74,23,076 574.23
Shares issued during the year - - - =
Al the end of the year 5.74.23.076 574.23 5.74.23.076 574.23

Rights, preference and restrictions attached to equity shares

The Company has a single class of equity shares. Accordingly. all equity shares rank equally with regard to dividends and share in the Company’s residual assets. The equity shares are entitled
1o receive dividend as declared from time (o time. The voting rights of an equity shareholder on a poll (not show of hands) are in proportion Lo its share of the paid-up equity capital of the

Company.

On winding up of the Company. the holders of equity shares will be entitled lo receive the residual assets of the Company.

Shares held by holdi y / ulti holding
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
No. of shares Amoun( No. ol shares Amount
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up
BSREP I1I India Ballet [ Pte. Ltd.. holding company 5,74,23,075 574.23 5,74,23,075 574.23
BSREP 111 India Ballet Pte. Ltd.. ultimate holding company 1 0.00 1 0.00
5,74,23,076 574.23 5,74,23,076 574.23

Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares

in the Company

Particulars

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid-up
BSREP Il India Ballet T Pte. Ltd.

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

No. of Shares % ol Holding No. of Shares % of Holding
5.74.23.075 99.999998% 5,74.23.075 99.999998%
5,74,23,075 99.999998% 5.74.23.075 99.999998"%5

Company has nol issued any bonus shares. shares for consideration other than cash and neither bought back any shares from the date of incorporation

Other equity

Particulars

31 March 2023

31 March 2022 |

Securities premium account:
Al the commencement of the year
Add: Premium on shares issued during the year
At the end of the year

Retained earnings:
At the commencement of the year
Add: Profit / (Loss) for the year
Add: Other comprehensive income loss
At the end of the year

ial instruments

Equity comp of comp
At the commencement of the year
Add: Additions for the year
At the end of the year

Total

g mrﬁi’liﬁx:' i

3} : if
: rl}r;iullrnl of compound fnanginl instruments
L s equity c

e

5,033.72 5,033.72
5.033.72 5,033.72
(2,351.76) (1,281.74)
(633.21) (1,074.60)
2.88 458
(2.982.09) (2.351.76)
876.59 876.59
876.59 876.59
2.928.22 3,558.55

cmntc!.qr![ningsrcp!w_c_n'u accn:i“lll]i‘llc_dl‘carniﬂp of the Company available for distribution to shareholders as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
(U ¥ i

'u_n dl'Cnm'pl'ﬂsmi!).' Convertible Debentures (CCDs). net of tax. Refer note 15(b) for details on terms of the instrument
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Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2023 (Continued)
(All amounts in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

15 Borrowings

15(a) Non-Current Borrowings

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Secured:
Term loans:
- From banks
Rupee term loan (Refer note A amd B) 9,169.43 9,176.74
Less : Amount disclosed under Current maturities of long-term borrowings {Refer (115.63) (47.93)
note A(d) and B(c)}
9.053.80 9.128.81
‘Working capilal term loan (Refer note ) 2,000.00 2,000.00
Less :Amount disclosed under Current maturities of long-term borrowings {Refer note (c)] {125.00) -
1.875.00 2.000.00
Unsecured:
Liability component of compound financial instruments (Refer note C) 4.681.49 431215
4.681.49 4.312.15
Total 15.610.29 15.440.96
e

15(b) Current Borrowings

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 |
Secured:
Short Term Line Credit (Refer note D) 185.49 191.68
Current maturities of long-term borrowings {refer note 14a) 240.63 47.93
426,12 239.61
et
Notes:

A Term loan and working capital loan from Bank

The lender has granted a term loan facility under the Common Facility Agreement dated 30 September 2019 to the Company and three co-borrowers i.e, Schloss Chennai Private Limited,
Schloss Udaipur Private Limited and Schloss Bangalore Private Limited. for a total amounting to Rs, 27.500.00 millions for the purpose of acquisition (Rs. 25.500 millions} and
refurbishment of the hotel property (Rs. 2,000 millions) fully fungible amount amongst each of the three co-borrowers and the Company's hotel property in Delhi. The door to door tenure of
the loan is 15 years including moratorium of one year. The loan is repayable in 56 quarterly structured installments beginning 31 December 2020. The loan carries interest rate linked to
lender's one year marginal cost of funds based lending rate ("MCLR"), subject to annual reset. plus spread ranging from 0.80% to 1.60% based on the external credit rating. The Company has
available facility of Rs. 8,955.00 millions and rate of interest as on 3] March 2023 is 8.70% (March 2022: 7.80% p.a)

With the gradual drawdown of capex in the past three years the individual limits set for Schloss Chennai Private Limited and Schloss Udaipur Private Limited got exhausted and an
application to the lender was made for revision in the individual limits. However, due to the system limitation at the end of the lender, the same cannot be revised and accordingly a cross
utilisation of capex limit was done during the year. The Company has cross charged the interest expense on such utilisation.

(a) Primary security:
The total term loan under the said agreement is secured against assets of the Company, other co-borrowers and obligators i.e. Schloss HMA Private Limited and Leela Palaces and Resorts
Limited under the Common Facility Agreement. interalia, including:
i. Exclusive charge on the total assets (including mortgage of property and / or mortgage of leasehold rights in case of leasehold property. if any) (present & future)
ii. Exclusive charge on brand *Leela’ pertaining to Hotels, other intangibles, Goodwill, Intellectual Property (IP), uncalled capital (present and future).
jiii. Exclusive charge on all bank accounts including but not limited to Escrow account (present & future).
iv. First charge on the total current assets (present and future)
v. Hypothecation of cash fiows

(b)  Corporate guarantee:
i) of Schloss HMA Private Limited. a fellow subsidiary.
i) of Leela Palaces and Resorts Limited. a fellow subsidiary.

(¢)  Other security:
i) Pledge of 30% shares of the Company held by BSREP [l India Ballet | Pte, Ltd.. Holding company. in favour of security trustee for the benefil of lenders for the entire term loan exposure.

i) A guarantee of BSREP I1I India Ballet Pte. Limited. ultimate Holding company. situated at Singapore upto an amount of Rs, 3,000 millions, enforceable at Singapore towards meeting the
shortfall in debt service obligations till 30 March 2022,

iiii) A guarantee of BSREP Il India Ballel Holdings (DIFC) Limited.. ultimate Holding company of sister company. situated at Dubai upto an amount of Rs. 3,000 millions, enforceable at
Dubai towards meeting the shortfall in debt service obligations from 31 March 2022

iv) Mortgage on the land situated at Agra owned by Leela Palaces and Resorts Limited.

(d)  Current maturities of long-term borrowings are classified as other current liabilities

{¢) Modification in facility terms:
Lender on the request of the management has waived the requirement of testing of financial covenants (il the end of FY 2022-23 with testing to be performed on the audited balance sheet as

at 31 March 2024 onwards.

(h  Moratorium on interest:
Company has availed the moratorium facility for interest on term loan from the month of March to August, 2020 which has been further capitalised into term loan w.e.f. 01 October 2020
Accordingly, interest outstanding till 31 August 2020 amounting to Rs.390.26 millions (Previous year- Rs. 390.26 millions) has been capitalized in term loan reported above

(g) The quarterly returns or statements of current assets i.e. stock statement, FFRs etc. filed by the Company with banks or financial institutions are in agreement with the books of accounts.

B The lender has granted a Working capital term Loan (WCTL) Facility under Guaranieed Emergency Credit Line 3.0 (GECL 3.0) facility of Rs.2000 millions (Previous Year: 2000 millions) on
9 Deeember. 2021 to the Company to augement nel working capilal. requirements to me¢t operational liabilities. The door to door tenure of the loan is 6 years including moratorium of
principal of two years. The loan is repayable in 48 monthly structured installments beginning January 2024. The loan carries interest rate linked to lender’s six months marginal cost of funds
based lending rate ("MCLR"). plus 1%. subject to annual reset

(a) Primary security:
Second charge on securilies mentioned in A(a) above

(b)  Other security:
1) Pledge of 3

1he Company held by BSREP 11l India Ballet 1 Pte. Ltd.. Holding company. in favour of security trustee for the benefit of lenders for the entire term loan exposure.

o
r&s H‘!&\:-Igﬂll wings are classified as short term borrowings.
e 7
i rer e
14t Foor, NS Ry
na .
” A

()




SCHLOSS CHANAKYA PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2023 (Continued)
(All amounts in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

15 Borrowings (Continued)

C

(a)

b)

(a)

(b)

()

(d)

Notes (Continued)
10.50% unsecured compulsorily convertible debentures

Conversion terms:

At the end of the tenure (15 years), each Compulsorily Convertible Debentures ("CCD") of face value of Rs 100 each will be converted into 1 equity share of face value of Rs 10 each. CCD
can be converted during the tenure of CCD al the option of the CCD holders, Provided that the CCDs shall automatically stand converted inlo equity shares upon:

(a) Commencement of the corporate insolvency resolution process of the Company or. any of the co-borrowers under the Common Facility Agreement dated 30 September 2019 executed
with the lender: or

(b) Conversion of loan into equity of the Company or any or all of the co-borrowers under the Common Facility Agreement. unless otherwise instructed by the lender as per the Cornmon
Facility Agreement who have provided the loans or who may have acceded to the financing documents.

During the year ended 31 March 2021. the terms of the CCD have been amended to provide the option Lo the issuer to convert the CCD during the tenure of the CCD. However. the issuer
does not expect to convert the said instrument before the expiry of its term of 15 vears at the end of which it should stand automatically converted subject to the above.

Restriction on payment of interest on CCDs:

As per terms of the Common Facility Agreement referred at clause 5(A) above, interest on the CCDs shall be accrued but cannot be paid by the Company until all the obligations under
Common Facility Agreement are completed or seized

Short Term Credit Line

The lender has granted a working capital facility as per Agreement dated 11 August 2020 to the Company and three co-borrowers i.e. Schloss Chennai Private Limited. Schloss Bangalore
Private Limited. Schloss Udaipur Private Limited, for & total amounting to Rs. 500.00 millions ( March 2022: 500 millions) to meet the working capital requirement and il is repayable on
demand. The loan carries interest rate linked to lender’s one year marginal cost of funds based lending rate ("MCLR", subject to monthly reset. The rate of interest as on 31 March 2021 is
9.25%

Primary security:

Exclusive first charge on the entire current assets (Present and Future) of the Borrower and Schloss HMA Privale Limited (hote] management entity).

Collateral security:

(i) Extension of exclusive charge on the entire fixed assets (including mortgage of property and/or mortgage of lease hold rights in case of lease hold property. if any) of the borrower.

(ii) Extension of exclusive charge on all cash flows of the borrower and Schloss HMA Private Limited (hotel management entity). related to project (including but not limited to ESCROW
account and Debt Service Reserve Accounts) opened/to be opened with lender.

(iii) Extension of mortgage on the land situated at Agra owned by Leela Palaces and Resorts Limited

(iv) Extension of exclusive charge on brand Leela. other intangibles, goodwill, IP relaling to the 4 SPVs owned by Schloss HMA Private Limited

(iv) Extension of pledge of 30% shares of (i) Schloss Chanakya Private Limited held by BSREP III India Ballet I Pte, Ltd. (ii) Schloss Udaipur Private Limited held by BSREP 1II India Ballet
I Pte. Ltd. (iii) Schloss Bangalore Private Limited held by BSREP III India Ballet 111 Pte. Ltd. (iv) Schloss Chennai Private Limited BSREP III India Ballet IV Pte. Ltd in favour of the lender
for the entire exposure (TL+WC)

Corporate guarantee:

i) of Schloss HMA Private Limited, a fellow subsidiary

ii) of Leela Palaces and Resorts Limited. a fellow subsidiary.

iiii) A guarantee of BSREP II India Ballet Pte. Limited, ultimate Holding company. situated at Singapore upto an amount of Rs. 3.000 millions, enforceable at Singapore towards meeting the

shortfall in debt service obtigations 1ill 30 March 2022,
iv) A guarantee of BSREP Il India Ballet Holdings (DIFC) Limited.. ultimate Holding company of sister company. situated at Dubai upto an amount of Rs 3.000 millions. enforceable at

Dubai towards meeling the shortfall in debt service obligations from 31 March 2022,

The quarterly returns or statements of current assets i.e. stock statement. FFRs etc filed by the Company with banks or financial institutions are in agreement with the books of accounts.
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Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2023 (Continued)
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16  Other financial liabilities
16¢a} Non-Curren(
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Trade / security deposits 0.25 0.45
Liability towards environmental clearance (Refer note 31) 56.95 48.08
Statutory dues payable
- Property tax (Refer Note 35) 6.11 6.11
63.31 54.64
16(b) Current
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Trade / security depasits 1.25 1.05
Employee dues payable 31.48 29.87
Interest Accrued but not due on Borrowings - 75.90
Liability 1owards environmental clearance (Refer note 31) - 42.36
32.73 149.18
17  Provisions
17(a) Non-Current
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 Mareh 2022
Provision for employee benefits:
- Compensated absences 4.36 2.50
- Gratuity (Refer note 27) 441 611
8.77 B.61
17(b) Current
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Provision for employee benefits:
- Compensated absences 0.41 0.21
- Gratuity (Refer note 27} 0.59 0,28
1.00 0.49
18 Trade payables
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small entetprises (Refer note below) 16.65 19.75
_ Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises
- Related parties (Refer Note 36} 106.91 67.11
- Other vendor payables 62.68 52.86
- Accrual expenses and others 40,85 34.37
277.09 174.09
e
Dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
Particulars 31 Mareh 2023 31 March 2022
Principal amount due to suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining 16.65 19.75
unpaid as at year end
Interest due Lo suppliers registered under the MSMED Act and remaining unpaid as at 0.01 0.00
year end
Principal amounts paid to suppliers registered under the MSMED Acl. beyond the 0.92 5.51
appointed day during the year
Interest paid, other than under Section 16 of MSMED Act, to suppliers registered under - -
the MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day duning the year
Interest paid. under Section 16 of MSMED Acl, to suppliers registered under the - -
MSMED Act, beyond the appointed day during the year
Interest due and payable towards suppliers registered under MSMED Act. for payments 0.01 0.i7
already made
Further interest remaining due and payable for earlier years - -

The management has identified enterprises which have provided goods and services to the Company and which qualify under the definition of micro and small enterprises as defined under

MSMED Act.
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18

Trade payables (Continued)

As at 31 March 2023

O ling for following periods from date of transaction
Particulars a— Total
expenses and Less than 1 year 1-2years 2 - 3 years More than 3 years
others
(iy MSME 16.65 - - - 16.65
(if) Others 90.87 162.31 7.27 0.00 - 260.45
(iii) Disputed dues - MSME - - - - -
(iv) Disputed dues - Others - - - - -
Total 90.87 178.95 7.27 (.00 - 277.09
As at 31 March 2022
Outstanding for following periods from date of transaction
Particulars Accrued Total
expenses and Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2 -3 years More than 3 years
others
(i) MSME - 19.75 - - - 19.75
(ii) Others 34.37 119.97 - E - 154.34
(11i) Disputed dues - MSME - - = B . -
(iv) Disputed dues - Others - - - - - -
Total M.37 139.72 - - - 174,09
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19 Other current liabilities

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Advance from customers 97.51 69.53
Statutory dues payable
- Tax deducted at source and equalisation levy 98.13 89.07
- Provident fund 2.59 2.20
- Employees state insurance 0.09 0.09
- Goods and services tax 31.61 18.39
- Value added tax 2.59 3.61

232.52 182.89
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20

21

22

Revenue from operations

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Revenue from contract with customers:
(a) Sale of products:
Food and beverages revenue

(b) Sale of services:
Room income
Income from rental and related services

Other allied services (laundry income, health club income, airport transfers, membership etc

Total revenue from operations

896.04 519.64
1,302.19 534.32
1.66 2.80
107.91 37.19
1,411.76 574.31
2,307.80 1,093.95

The entire revenue of the Company is generated in India. The disaggregation of revenue is presented above.

Contract Balances

The contract liabilities primarily relate to the advance consideration received from customers for which revenue is recognized when the
performance obligation is over/ services delivered. Advance collection is recognised when payment is received before the related
performance obligation is satisfied. This includes advances received from the customer towards rooms/ restaurant/ banquets. Revenue is
recognized once the performance obligation is met i.e. on room stay/ sale of food and beverage/ provision of banquet services/ other allied
services. The Company has recorded revenue of Rs. 50.56 millions against opening balance of contract liabilities.

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Contract liabilities
- Advance from customers

Contract assets
- Unbilled revenue

Other income

97.51

40.43

69.53

46.14

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Interest income from financial assets measured at amortized cost:

- fixed deposits

- Intercorporate Deposit

- others

Liability no longer required written back

Compensated absences written back (Refer note 27)

Net foreign exchange differences

Net gain on account of modification in liability towards environmental clearance
Net gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Other income

Consumption of food and beverages

39.93 13.53
9.49 1.99
0.51 0.63
2.75 -

- 3.29
1.54 0.11
9.38 2.51

- 20.08

16.05 7.42

79.65 49.56

For the year ended

For the year ended

FArgEnias 31 March 2023 | 31 March 2022
Opgaffie 35.54 38.10
4; Purehases-. 194.05 115.27
o AN R § 229.59 153.37
/ Lesé: Inventory at the'end of the period 42.96 3554
T denr B VR 186.63 /-117.83
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23

24

25

26

Employee benefits expense

Particulars

Salaries and wages

Contribution to provident fund, employees state insurance and labour welfare fund
Gratuity & Leave compensation

Staff welfare expenses

Finance costs

For the year ended | For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

330.28 262.27

15.17 12.61

9.08 2.93

37.41 24.62

391.94 302.43

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Interest expense on:
- Term loan*
- Unwinding of provision and liability
- Compulsory Convertible Debentures
Other borrowing costs (term loan upfront fee, processing fee, advisory fee etc.)

943.86 848.27
6.59 43.29
461.29 417.49
2.07 2.15
1,413.81 1,311.20

* Includes interest on working capital term loan of Rs. 170.14 millions (Previous Year Rs. 42.69 millions).

Depreciation and amortisation

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
Amortisation of intangible assets

Other expenses

179.94 215.48
0.16 0.19
180.10 215.67

For the year ended

For the year ended

Barticulacs 31 March 2023 | 31 March 2022
Consumption of stores and operating supplies 72.87 41.84
Power and fuel 130.22 87.75
Repairs and maintenance
- buildings 42.42 14.23
- plant and machinery 30.22 16.12
- others 34.56 21.42
Insurance 9.96 7.55
Communication 3.48 3.05
Travelling and conveyance 9.80 4.20
Guest transport 7.06 4.23
Printing and stationery 1.32 0.38
Reservation fees 8.43 4.06
Sales and credit card commission 78.68 33.20
Provision for doubtful debt - 8.94
Business promotion 74.30 46.02
Management fees 146.21 53.99
Legal and professional fees 36.68 22.92
Payment to auditor's (Refer note below) 1.80 1.70
Rates and taxes 97.88 119.84
Bank charges 0.65 0.38
Net loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 8.80 =
Miscgl'{an@qu&gxpgnscs 52.84 20.38
e & : 848.18 512.20
A =
gi{a‘\\'u'iém to auditor’s. (excluding taxes) r
g i For the year ended | For the yeafended
'- ':é"r*".c“'” i 31 March 2023 | 31 March’ﬁ;il'll
| Statutory audit fees 1.80 A0
1.80 NET0

—
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27 Employee henefits obligations

(a} Deflned contribution plan

Tie Cumpany makes provident fand cantabutions 1o dfined conimbution plans for quahfy ing empluyees. Under he plan. the Company s requined 1o cantrbute a specaficd pereentage of the payroll costs o Jund the benefits The contrbntions payable under (ese
plans b the Company are al rales speetfied 1 he miles of Uhe sl
“The contributions an: clarged 10 the statcment of profit and b= s - accrue. T amount ay an expenise 1w ards conntaon (o provident fund, employees state msurance and Tabour welfare fund for the yeniod aggregated 1o Ks 1517 mllions (P amount

Rs 1261 millions)

(b) Deflaed heacflt plan

Gratun

e €y s ooy et defiont o Pl it premades pranai i Cumpany fas gt funded the defined benefit plan or elgible employees. The sclieni: provides, for lenupsum paynent 1o ehgible emplogoes on reirement. death whie n
w { o of am ety 15 days sabaey payable for ssch completed vear of servee ur ant ol n extess of six months subgect 1 i of R 20 Jakhs The unfundud pornion as well as the amounis in exeess of e

ey socur un complobim i T years (s

I'a\lll e B by l'uﬂwa s o by
The present value of the defined benelit obligation and carment senvice cost are muzsund using the progeeied wnn eredit method with actiarial valuations being camed ot at each halance sheel date

The emplayoes of 1L Limled were ehgible and covereel under the exisung Group Gratuns -cam-Lif assurance policies adminsstered through HLY” Limited. Emplayee Group Graruily-eum- Life Assurance Schemie: On 16 Uctober 2019, the Company and Hotel
L ectaventure Lamiicd Tas cnierod anio a Busiess Transfer Agreament (TB1A™) for acquisahion of Delhn hotel operauons (ihe "Hotel™) of HLY Lumited Pursuant 1o BTA. there has been complete ransfer of employnient af the otel te the Company and the cuntnuty
af services for every employee al the |ote] was consrved Pendimg mansfer of plan assets and obligations undur i exisung pohey of TILY Limited, Employee Group Gratany Lific Assrance Seheme 1 the pey policy of Sehloss Chanakya Private Linuied as al the
repurting date. the Company las consideru the Eur value of plan assets and obligatons pertaming 10 (e mansferred emipluyees ai the botel as aceumulated nder the cxisting policies for the purpose of aciuanal valuation.

Net beaefll oblipation s at balance sheet date: Amount (lo millions)
Partioulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Present yahie of obhgaton 1620 1835
Faur value of plan assets 1120 1203
Net assets / (lahility) recogiized 1n balance shoet as provision SN [LAN]

Mo cwent In net deflned beneflt obligation and plon msscts

The fullowang bl shows a recunciliatian from the opening balances 10 closing balances

Delinas) bemedit wblization Fadr vl of plam ssts Nt muat Tinleiliny
M Mareh F021 31 Maseh 2022 J Mareh 223 21 March J022 31 Mawch N3 I Mareh 2022
Upsning halines s s 1104 wn (3] [
Acuqusstion sdpssrent - . . nis . wis
Conesl Seeve Uost n an . = 4n (L8 L]
Past Senvice Costincluduig curaiment Gains1.osses . . . B - .
Gans or Lusses on Non mouline seitlements - - . - - -
Interest Cosl’ Interest mcome on plan assets 133 143 480 026 347 [{BY}
Benefis pad 800 0.69) (8.00) (0 69) . -
Employer Contmabution - . 237 F 2 -
Actwanal Toss' {gain) ansing from cliage in: . x - E : .
Demagrapuc Assumplion - . . i . z
Imancial Assumptton - i S a o .
IExpenence Adjustment 105 (6.74) - . (1.05) 6
Actuanal (oss) gam on plan assel . . - - - .
Closlog balance 1628 LE] 1120 12n 15.00) [1%4]
Expease recognlzed In statement of profit and loss:
Partioilars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Total Service Cost a7 i
Net Inerest Cost s L1}
Expense recognized m the Income Stalement pE) AT
In other lacome:
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
“Actuanal gain / (loss) fur the year on PBU {1,051 6.74
Actuanal gain #loss) for the year on Assel 193 ©0.55)
Unreeognized actuanal gain(loss) for the perod 288 6.19
Plan Asscty:
Plan assets comprase: the (ollowng
Partculars 31 March 2023 31 March 2122
Flands Slamgal by Inssir 1120 am
Coverage of plan asser 100% 100%
Summary of actuarlal essumptions:
The followmg were the prncipal actwanal assumptions at the reparting date
Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Discount rate 7.39% 1.26%
Fulure salary growih 1.00% 7.00%
Retmement Age (Years) S8 58
Mortality rales inclusive of provistan for disability JALM(2012-14) JALM(2012-14)
Altnton al Ages
-Uplo30 Years 200% 2.00%
- From ) 10 44 years Lo0% 1.00%
- Ahove 44 years LI L%
Sumithiny snatynk:
2) Iuact of the change m disconnt zale
Present Value of Oblipaban al the end of te penod 16.20 18.35
gt el B ieneriearig of 0, 507 (107 (1.25)
Impacl due 1o decrease of 0.56% 117 1,38
9 impact of the change n salary increase
Present Value of Obhyation al the end of the penod 1620 B35
Impact due (0 menase of 0 30% 117 138
Impact due ta decnzse of 0 50% (108K (1.261

Senstatis due 1o 1orialiy & withdraw als are ot matuab & hence impact of clange due o these nal calculated Sensiiies as i of menase of pensions 1 payment, mie of anerease of pensions before retmeanent & life expectancy an: nat applicatic

Expested contribution fur the next Annual reporting perlod:

Particulars Amount (Lo milllons)

S Cetst 491
et Interust Cost 037
inpected Expense for Qe nest annual neporting period 528

<) Compensated absences
The componsatel abrences (nar-andec) Gor the period endd 31 March 2023 amouniag 10 Rs. 199 mullins (Y amount (eversal) Rs 3 29 i) has been nocogrized in the saiement of profi and los, based on actuznal vabuation carmed out wsing Projected Uint

Crodu Method
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Enrnings per share

Computativn of carnlops per shore

Parthulan 31 Mareh 2023 31 March 2022
e sitilarkalic i oty ahatch bicn for fus KT [ETETH [EE
108 afiibutable 10 cquuty shareholders for diluied 1318 63321) (1,074.60)
Wourglied averape number of shares 1o be considered for compuung Tasic KIS 574,207 57423076
Waiphied averape number of shares o bx: considered for coniputing dilaied TPS 5742307 574.23,076
Frace value per share 10 10
Basic camurgs per share (INR) (L03) g7
Dilined camings per share (1R} (1103 g7
Heconcilintion of carnings used In calculating carnlnps per shore
Particntars 31 Mureh 2023 31 Marsh 222
Basle EPS
1 s altributable 10 cyuity sharcholders (31 S11] (LATLEHL
633,21y 11.07460)
Diluied EP'S
Loss atirituuable ( ety sharchalders [(ELRI]] (AT
Lo sttribaitalide o T comeademald B difutiad g 633.21) (L074.60)
Welghted average numher of shores used as the dennminator
Pastkuban 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Waerphted average mimber of ety shanes wsed as the denominator m calculating basic eamings 57423076 57423076
et share T IR
phicd average mumber of mandatorily convertible nstniments (CC1s) included in dee
denomuator in caleulzung tasic camings o per para 23 of Ind-AS 337 , .
Welglited ps erage nuntber of equity shores nd potential cqulty shares used as the S0 51530

denomlnator In calculating busle and diluted caralngs per share
Nole: Since the shares are anu-diluiive i nature, we will ignon: the impact of convertible debenturcs

Scgment Reportlng
s Dincctors are identified as Chiel Operating Decision Maker (CODATY sce Uiy are responsible (or all the major decisions waih rospeet (o the praparation and exocution f business plan. preparaton of budge. plannig. allance. merger, acquisiion

The Company
and cxparston of 1oiel Leela Dell CODM has examine the Company's performance from product and geoprmpne parspective and has denfied a szl business sepaent 1 "Iuxloping and g ofhotels” henoe po spueafic diclossres have beun made

A Tufurmntion about produets and service.
Company pimarily deals i one bustacss naniely "Developing and aunning of hotels™ therefure product w ise revenu disclosine 1 not applicable

. lnformation sbout peographicul areas
The Campany provides senvices o customers i fndu. Further, there ane o non-cument asscts located outside India

C. laformption sbuut mejor customers
The company does ol denve revenuc (rom one customer winelt would amount 10 10 per cent of more of the caly's revernue

Leases

Thes (ompny s cracrod ums contracls which quabify for lease as pes the enienas spocafiud undr fnd AS. 116, There are 2 nvogrorion exemprions dase heun pruvaded in Ind AS 16 for short term leasts and Tow vahie hases The contracts entered by the company
ane primunhy fod i prrpi of scovmmmodat of aghivoe sl Tor the term of less tian 12 months Tlence. ey qualify ihe eacmption entena Gor short lerm Tease: For the rest of the contacts. e Company las the opion fo exit the lease by prang 2-3 months
et w b sty gl gty Based on expected use of such leased premases by the managemient they woald qualiy for short e 1case xurnption. Hence, the Yease renials has direeily twen clarged 10 the siatenuent of P&T

Llabllity for eovironmenta] clearance
J sabilty towards emvironmenta) clearance penains to expense lo b meumed by the Company for the nemedunun plan for obming Emarurmental Clearanc: (7EC™) from the Minsiry of Linaronment and Fonests ("MOEL) far the erlianced buit-up area for which
IiC was ot abained 1n 1he past The total expenses lu be incurred by the Company 1s Rs 10907 millions The brcakun of the amount to b wncurred by the Company 1s as fallow «

Particnbars Amennt
T inet oo tmscabutasn ples teead on dainage assessment due b vielasson. da97
Natwral resource and community resource avgmentation plan 3385
ctwties (o be completed under CER afler (e accordance of environmental cliaranee 3625
T:culogy and tnodivwrsily conservation m AsolaBhah Sanctuary and Okhla Bird Sanctuary 1w
[

The sand anaunt s 1o be spent by the Company over a period of 3 years as follows:

Pt thcilens 31 Mareh 2023 Al Maswh 2003

Fiasncul yos 303322 2445 245
Financial vear 2022-23 2150 42.36
Finaneual vear 2023-24 61,12 42.26

“This 15 lo b incumed over the peniod of hree years starting Decensher 2020

Nt dhehd pocunsibiation
Reconcihation betwees the opemng and closing balances n e balance sheet for labilitves and financial assets ansing from financing acimies for movement e statement of cash flow are given below;

Particulars Curvest Rervimiing Nono-Current Dorrowlogs
Mataiscs we w30 March 1001 15575 15432 86
Proceeds for the year (nclusive of seunty premmim component) 3593 2000.00
Repayments fur the s ear v (7.8
Interest cost fur the vear (inclusive of fair valuation companent) . B48.27
Interest paxd for the year - (902.23)
Palasce w ot 31 Murch 2022 191,68 17.371.07
Procueds for the year (inelusive of secunty premiam component) (N E]] 1RS 38
Intrust cost for the year (inclusive of (i valwation component) . 94396
Interes pard for the year - (1.120.38)

1B5.49 17,379.94

Finonclsl lostruments ~ Falr yalucs ood rlsk management

Note 32,1: Accounting classification sod fuir values

Camyng amounts and fair values of financial assets and financiz) Jabibies. mcluding therr lewls in e faur value erarchy, are presented below . 1t does nol inelude O Gur value nformation for (inancwl assels and financial tizbihiies pot masured at fair vahue 1 U

canyig antount 1 a reasonable approxmation of fair value,

As 01 31-Mar-2023

vy ing wmmnt Fair vahne

Purticibars FVTPL Aty thasd et F\TOCH Totsl Leved | Lok 3 Level 3 Tots)
Flooncial asseh:
Trade recenables . 106 81 - 106.81 B -
Loans . 6000 . 600 00 . -
Cash and cash equivalents . 289.20 - 209.20 . -
Bank balances uthet than cash and cash equisalenis, . 11828 . 118 28 . -
ther Ginancial assels - 164,72 - ({50 . -

. [ . 1IRETS - - 457}

b

Borrowtigs {exeliding curment mawmnties) . 16.036.41 . 16,036.41 . . 1603641 16.036 41
Trade payables . 277.09 . 277.09 . . 277.09 277.09
Other Jinancal habilies . ] S04 . . i L)

= [T - [T - P 164054 16.409.51




33 Financlol Instruments — Foir values ond rish munopement (Contioned):
As ul 31-Mar-2022

Catvpimg asaimi e v abr
Paiticaiber FVIPL Amertiant et FVIOCI Lt 1 Tt Eanad 3 Total
Flnonclal gssets;
Trade necenables - 31.08 . 37.08 . . 37.08 37.08
Loans . 117.93 . 117.93 - - 117.93 11793
Cash and cash cuivalents - 1.081.42 . 1,08L.42 . . 1.081.42 108142
BBank talanees other tun cash and cash equisalents - 3957 . 3957 . - 39.57 39.57
Other financia) assels - 1817 e 164,78 . * 16LTY [Thil
. LAITH = 1, 84ILTR . . 140,78 1A40.7R
Bamowmgs {excluding current matumiies) . 15,680.57 - 15,680.57 . - 15,680,517 15,680.57
Trade payables . 174.09 . 17409 . . 17409 17409
Other finan ul habilie, - 203 RY s maad - = P00 H 20382
- 15053 4% - [Nl . . IR0 16058 48

Nol
1) The caryng a1 tmd reervables, trade s cath e cash equivalents and bar tolances uther than cash are et xpenabintsare considensd (o be the same as thet fau values: duc 10 Uit short-um naue.
) T P emtss o e, sy depuomts s 2ty et #m cash lows discounied sng & cument lending e They 3o bsmsfied as Tesut 3 for salues i the fare valu eranehy due to the weluson of niteervuble s snchuding euuntemarty credit ok

1) Thie faur values of nan-qurrent horros are based an discounted cash ows usig 3 curtyss harrowng Rile. They are classified as lovel 3 Gair values 1n lhe fair value lnerarchy due 10 Uie use uf inobservable imputs, mcludmg own crodit mh
1w For financul assets and Tabilites that ane measured at fair value, he camying amossss sncegual to the o values.

Note 32.2: Flnonclsl risk monogenicol ohjcetives and policles
Tlw: Company bas exposire 10 the following nsks ansing (rom financial wstruments:
A} Credil sk
13 Ligudity msk
C) Market nsk
(1) Curmency mak
() lnterest rte nsks

Hisk mansgement framework:

Pl Csmapzin s baoand oo itvcrons. buw oesll pespuniaibaliy e the ostindancs and imighe of i Compatm s ik managomen Temewvik, The tosd of deocin bas citabintul e Hik Vurmpeses Conutiatioe. w b o regomids foe oy sl
iy e £ ey s ok e peleae, The cvmssmor repvt tugulary ko the Soand of deocuty s ite inEscs .
e Cvimsguams s rk mrag ndin sl 1o whomiity s siahyues fhee ryods Escund by the Commpmy. 89 st apprpraitie sk Dutists uind uninids sl b ponitos ks and afhtince v s Hod, tamapeme pobeaes 2ind syaten s sevkwiad fopibrk b
bt chumps i tarhict uinedutm sinet the o s strebis. The Company. Gevugh s Buitieg. ) mmapemnl atsndans and procedone. dam i g ad i e B! iph s, i tho s snd
oblieatons

A) Crodit rbk
Crushl sk 1 the rask of financaal Toss 10 s Company 1€ a customer or counterpany 1o a financial wsirument farls (@ incet 1ts contractual ublig ations, and astses priwcipally from the Company

The carryng amonnt of followng firsncis! il i

recenvables (rom customens and loans and advances

Trode recelvables

e Campang’s exposure i credit sk s milacnced mannly by the ididual characunscs of each cisiomer and the geography 1n which it uprates Crodi nsh 1s managed trough crudi apmocaly and s monuoring the of custoniers o
which the Company. grants credit termis n the normal course of busmess. The company operates anly m one peographical locauon 1 ¢ m Idha. Cunsidering (e ndusizy an whnch the company 15 operatmg. there 1 1o major long vutsianding receisables uther than
woveived in'the Pmancw oemiisnon.

The Company also establishes an allowance for nnparment that represents its estisiss: of £t losses in respect of tade recivablis

“The carrying amownts of tmde recenables as disclosed 1n note o 9 represent Uhe st srfil nsk exposure.

The apuing of trade recenables that arc past due and exprected eredit loss an: pren telow:

Year 1 s 641 g 61 1o 120 days 120 10 180 days Ahove 161 days Gruss recelvable Impairment  Net recelvable
A ut M Mareh W23 TaRE AR i (] [[EER 700 0T
A wt 31 Mareh 222 220 b 40 10 H6RE 978 $.m

The movernent 10 Joss allow ance n respeet of trade resvables is as follow s

Partioulurs As at 31 Mareh 2023 As 2t 31 March 2022
Opening 975 238
oss allowance recognised 0,76 37
Amounts wntten ofl EET] .

Closing .01 335

D} Liquidity risk

L santis sk 1 the sk tht e Company st @acstes iy m meting the obhzanons assoated widh 1 finacial batnlies thal e seuled by dedrverirg ey or anolber financial asset The Compans's approach o misagng Tiquidity 15t ensure. as far as
el that 1 veill v sulicrent gl s s lisbeines, when they are due, under Sth nonmal and stressed condilions. without iacurming unaisbic s of nsking danage 10 the Company’s eaputauon.

Exposure to liquidlry risk

T Rollowuig are the nanaiming contrachual mawntes of fiuancial latnlies ai the reporung date. The amounts ane gross and undiscounted

< Tcah s
As w1 31 March 2023 Curnving
it Ying vaiin 0-12 months 1-2ye0m 25 years Vore thai § year
Notalerivativy fuanclal labflitin:
Non-cument borrowings (including cumen matiniics) 1585092 24063 61592 333349 6.958.94
Curtent bommowings 185.49 185.49 ‘ s .
Trade payables 2710 271700 . . 2
oy i 404 33 o . =
] Ties T T (R
<. Tcadh fhons
As 0t 31 Morch 2022 Carrylag volus
0-12 months 12 yeurn 2.8 yeurs More than § years
Nonderls ative Naanclal Uabllitcs:
Non-comnt borraw ngs (inclodang current matoris) 15,44% B9 4793 28229 226869 1439098
Cument borrow ngs 19168 191,68 s . -
Trade payablis 17409 17409 2 . =
Arahes firvincial haks i =) J01ED (LS At 4L -
Tenseas 389 70 A0 [N

C) Morke! Fisk

arket risk s the nisk that changes 10 market prces such as forvign exchange rates amd interest rates will affect the proup's income or the vahie of is holdings of financial instrunents Ihe objective of marke nsk managenient 15 lo manage and control marker sk
exposuns within acceplable parameters, while optmssig the e

Qur Buard of Dircctons are nesponsible for oversceing our nsh assessient and managunient pohcies Our majar markel nsks of foreign exchange and micres( mle sk ane managed by our reasury department. wiich evaluates and exercies ndependent contrvl over the

ene process of market sk management

Curresiy rhk:
a1 which the an premanty are Indian Rugeas. The Company 15 exposcd (0 cumency nsk in respeet of ransactions n fonigs eumuscs. {1 gumadioms of the Conipany prinuarity m foreign cumeney an: mpon of siores and
it g, payment of roalty and ofes cxpemes. There are oo foreign curmency revenue. The Company’s expasur: (o forcign currency nsk at the end of e gy poraeed expressed 1 [NR. ane as fullow:

Yuws LB Esru Lo
Axwt 3 Mareh 2023 . - .
As o1 31 March 2022 - - .




33 Flnonela! instruments - Fair values and Ash munogement (Contioued}
Rbk monagement framewark (Continued):
Currency risk (Contioned):

Sensltivity
03y i Mareh 3

(BT R N

ey due ot e of 2% . -

rnpuact e W1 dixmaass 2 - -
EUR sensivaiv®

Impact due lo ncnase ol 5%

Impacl due to decrease of 5% . .
GRP sensitmaty”™

Tmpact due 1o mcrease of 5% - .

Impact due 1o decrease of 5% .
* . Holdmg all other vanables constant and the wmpac 1s entirely on profil bfore ax
listewint vube rhk:
vt rasc il m e either fair value nterest rate Tk or cash Mow mnterest rate nske Faie value Intenst rate rish 15 the sk of changes n fair values of fixed mierest beanng financial assets or bormuw ings hecause of fuctuations n the mierest rates, 1f such

st Tonua figs se measured al far value trough profit or Toss. Cash Now inlerest raie 1ask 1 the nisk thal the fisture cash flows of Hoating merest beanng borrowings will fluctuate because of (fuctuations n (he nlerest rates

Exposure lo lnferet rate risk

Partsoulars (Prinelpal mimil As at 3] March 2023 As ut 31 March 2022

Fuad-pate mstrumenis

« Compulsorily convetible debumtures 5,360.00 5,360.00

Varlable-rate Istruments

- Term loan from bank [IRLE ] LIS
[[EET] 1657438

Cash flow scnsltivity snalyals for varlable-raie Instruments:
A reasonably possible change af 30 basts poinis 1 micrestracs a e fepering daie would have mereaseet’(decrezsaat grofit o loss before Lx and equiy before 12 by the amounts shown below Thus analysis assumes thal al elher vanables rrain consiant

3140322023 31/0372022
Puoll’ i Pl (L)
T [T Weakral

\'anable-rate wstnments { Movements - 50 asis pownts) (56.04) 56.04 {5607 56.07

Cash flow scnsitivity (net} L5650 6,00 (56T} 607
3 Taxecxpense

Particulsrs 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

(#) Income tax expense

Curreat Lax

Curment 1ax on profis for Lhe year . .

Total current tax expense - F

Deferred tax

Decrease (increase) in deferred lax assets E (24122)

(Decrease) ncrease in defired tax liabiliies . .

Totsl deferred lax expensc/{benellt) - 241.22)

Income tax expense - (241.22)

(b) Reconclllstion of tax expense and the sccounting profit multiplicd by Indle’s fux rate:

31 March 2023 3§ March 2022

[ e e e 63321

Tas on above @ 26% (16463}

T effect of smounts which are nol deductible {taxable) In cslculating taxable Income:

ltems allowablc on payment basis ot recogmised 1n statement of profit and loss 17 142)

Iimpact of change in tax laws 027 002)

L dsed tax 4 61 (20739)

Other tming difTerences 144 70) (L0}

Jocome tax expense =

¢} Deferred tax

Acowmmtsal thrugh vivrement of Accainatod thrngh OCT

Ly Balamer s ot 31 Mureh 3022 it wed s _
Charee el Cliapeeredlt Charre’ ra:?nn
Dtarred bas el
Ervenste okant ans e eI W a . ]
[ ———"] 12069 0 . . 12096
Coatjratriby ol Peduimns mey i . . 1141
Mogry st ol elabexs, g o sl LE (L ) r - .
Deferrod tax assets: A
Borrowings 91.40) 061 - . ©201)
Provisian for emplayes benefits 231 ©17 . . @54
Disallowance ws 435 of the Income-tax Act, 1961 + z i . 2
Oters @98 0an . . (345
Cany forward losscs and O Pt . . i
‘Accounted through statement of Accountod
Particulars Balance us at 31 March 2021 el snd boin Accounted through OCE ooty aurpy o187 2 8t 31 March
Climrpe feredit Charge (credh) Cheree! (eredlt) 2022

Deferred tax Lablllty:
Propenwv. plant and cawiomen! 6156 5919 . . 12105
Intaneible assets ncludine Goodwll 12071 ©02) . . 12069
Campulsonty Comvertible Debenuris 35904 (36.60) . . M4
Recogaution of habnliues at fau vatue 095 © . . 0.58
Deferred tax msacts: -
Bormowings (89.15) 229 . i o140
Proviston for employa: benefits (255 (142} 4 : @m
Disaltowance ws 435 of the Income-tax Act, 1961 . = : - ;
Others (062) (236) . - .98
Carry forwand lusses and (21043 (307,391 . . ikan

B 1203 61 . .

() Defermd tax assets have boem cogmsed tased on an evaluation of wheter it 1s protable that tsable profis wil be camod 1 fofure accounting penods considering all the avarlable cadences. cludiog o
budgets and foruzasts by U Board of Dircctors.

() Defomred tax asses have not brn recagmsed  resTest of x losses of Rs 29257 millun (31 Sarch 2022 R 25132 mullion) as s recovery s nal considerd probabl  the foresceable fulure, Such losses relale ©
the business of the Compary

(1) Ta Tosszs 1n respeet of which defirred tax asset has nol been recopmised. espime nnutihsed asod on the vear of onguation as below

- s ot 31 March 022

Toapley pavinds A st 3 March J023ESH Mo 1INH Alal

Wiken fot yusit . .
Fator thum form v bl thas g vesn {18 20 2810
Mo gy - %




35 Contingent lisbllities and commitments

A Cintipligyast Bab lieks

Turrhuian 31 Mureh 3030 A1 March 3031

Claims against i vy st ackane kalpad v bebis [Relier mone (1Tl | Lamin BRI

Disputed statutory hatnliues jrefer note (it} brlow! 808 98.44

L LS

Sabind

10 The Fvasbougy o s s el e Compumn ne acioow adrad s does s wder

Parthenlan 31 Mareh S0V 31 sk 2021

FAR - New Defhy Mgl ol (N0 [Rekr avae e b | 3 F¥ I Ian

Proceeding under The Minmum Wages Act. 1948 {Reler note (b) below! 1.08 108

Procevdings for non-refund of amount on cancellation of bookimg {Refer nate (¢} below ! 1719 161
BT N

€3 1LY Lo imed e slcmansd o Bs. 152799 miflions towarsts VAR wharpes depssnd il e 558 64 sl nd e bk e of R S72.81 taiilbunts wies dugpusad LN Limmiled fikal 3 Wit ptinon
s e e Hligh s, e ah o1 sclomg a0 paasboes he i vinsth ey i g St the D o s classion o falling w o Spueh Zone for g urpsess of usyment ol charges for addiiesul FAR and
o g of 2% ol Earal Mmage By (2AAN"E The ity e puoading bfong e Ut

0 the vl ot Vi Wiges Nt 1948 i ymdr s ot agasnms 1L’ Eirmniod o Ssysmbn X013 vt i . Wi 448 smons. The ondes win chullvmgead by HLY Luwicd talian: | i 1ligh
vt of jusbesstury o Dt Hhe enatos s punhess: bfon: e D Coun, .

i Im b rury dmgs fikad i om i i of bookng by a customur s e HLV Limited. fraying fol & dovsun kot 4 e il Rs 1,25 millions and Fature micrest thereupon at the rate of
1+ gt anmm fiom ihe ik of the filkg of e pruscs st Bl 67 realizanion. The maiter has been adynaresd for filng of noply and spemests ssder apphicanon under Order | Rule 10 of the CPC and for filing ol
reinmder

40 T b o idvpuatend aninry fiatalmes b ss undin:
P themlars

M Mureh 20623 31 Margh N
Coanpan |s sppeab
Property tax ¢ - 90.91
Department In appesls
Serviee lax ** 8.08 753
i X

= P sl disguiiad bl miksion ko thc rind i 13 L0kibicn 3008 ns 23 Db 20011 e th D s wtshs cvoeaniciaon sl s Laod o sl am vacam. NUME dommandid properny . of Ba sy
i, gt whch L Lieniod Seposed B 57 30 flba on et b % pracvad by the bl capetal sl adpied b NOVK snd dotial 0f vacancy oo o prprty fan, 1LV Lol fiked 2
urum-whﬁq:!mu@hrumu:mu ctie i 010, The mutice e st puchicaitys i | Digh Conart. Purthor the nude avaibed o wisbeacsporns yeas ans howg pddod hock as armar by AT s bave
e melindiad i comtinpent Tsiality Puusing the yese. Cremnapoy has fusd Ka 9031 mstfhon oo vim e bability s e caoe bt bomw iediom e

o Sy L deyurimom das el dne L of Gopliticeeany srviods deating: the pemed fhim By 2013 ke Masch 2013 The sty is crimmivety onderg Nefoon RS TAT, 1 puasest tha R 20 b v pant ondy
orolesL

(b) Comemitmuettn
Estimasad st of contracts remawning to be execuled and not provided for (net of advances) amounts (o Rs. 0 48 millions {Previous year: Rs 33 30 millons)

£ie N

i

Y




SCHLOSS CHANAKYA PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2023 (Continued)

36 Related party disclosures
(a) Names of related parties

(i) Ultimale Holding company
BSREP 11 India Ballet Pte. Ltd

(ii) Holding company
BSREP 1l [ndia Ballet | Pte. Ltd

(iif) Fellow subsidiaries
Schloss HMA Private Limited (Till 30 March 2022)
Schloss Bangalore Private Limited (Till 30 March 2022)
Schloss Chennai Private Limited (Till 30 March 2022)
Schloss Udaipur Private Limited (Till 31 March 2022)
Schloss Gandhinapar Private Limited (Till 30 March 2022)
Leela Palaces and Resorts Limited (Till 30 March 2022)

{iv) Kev managerial personnel
Mr. Louis Sailer, General Manager (Tili 13 August 2020)
Mr. Anupam Das Gupta, General Manager (w.e.f 11 January 2021)
Mr. K. M. Bansal, Financial Controiler (Till 12 October 2021}
M. Viiaypal Singh, Financial Controller (w.e f 1 November 2021 till 9 December 2022)
Mr. Prem Pareek (w.e.f | December 2022)
Ms. Anuja Dubey (Till 10 March 2023)

(v) Other related parties
Tulsi Palace Resort Private Limited (w.e.f 3 May 2021)
Schloss HMA Privale Limited (w.e.f 31 March 2022)
Schloss Bangalore Private Limited (w.e f 31 March 2022)
Schloss Chennai Private Limited (w.e.f 31 March 2022)
Schloss Udaipur Private Limited (w.e.f 31 March 2022)
Schloss Gandhinagar Private Limited (w.e f 3] March 2022)
Leela Palaces and Resorts Limited (w.e.f 31 March 2022)
Moonburg, Power Private Limited (w.e f 29 March 2023)
Schloss Tadoba Private Limited (w.e.f. 16 August 2022)

(b) Transactions during the vear/period (Rupees in millions)

For the year ended 31 March For the year ended 31

Particulars 2023 March 2022
Management fees expense
Schloss HMA Private Limited 146.21 53.99

Reimbursement of expenses paid to / (received from)

Schloss HMA Private Limited 19.37 8.08
Schloss Bangalore Private Limited 0.24 0.14
Schioss Udaipur Private Limited 8.31 -0.28
Schloss Chennai Private Limited 11.78 -1.02
Schloss Gandhinagar Private Limited -0.05 -0.35
Tulsi Palace Reéson Private Limited 4.38 -0.06

Interest income on capex limit utilisation (refer note 15A)
Schloss Chennai Private Limited 8.22 -

Schloss Udaipar Private Limited 237 -

Interest on 10.50% unsecured compulsorily convertible debentures

BSREP 11l India Ballet ] Pte. Ltd. 613.03 562.80

Inter corporate deposit given

Schloss Bangalore Private Limited - 195.00

Schloss HMA Privale Limited 600.00

Inter corporate deposit received

Schloss Udaipur Private Limited - 145.00

Schloss Chennai Private Limited . 117.00

Schloss HMA Privale Limited - 185.00

Inter corporate deposil settlement

Schloss Udaipur Private Limited - 145.00

Schloss Banpalore Private Limited 117.94 77.06

Schloss Chennai Private Limited - i17.00

Schloss HMA Privale Limited 185.00

Interest expense/(income) on inter corporate deposit

Schloss Udaipur Private Limited . 9.21
- 10.76

Schloss Chennai Private Limited

Schloss HMA Private Limited 0.21) 13.29
Schloss Bangalore Private Limited (9.29) (1.99)
Managerial remuneration *

Mr. K. M. Bansal - 3.96
Mr. Anupam Das Gupta 16.08 11.91
Mr. Vijaypal Singh 2.09 0.92
Mr. Prem Pareek 1.20 -
Ms. Anuja Dubey** 0.90 -

* Managerial remuneration excludes provision for gratuity and compensated absences, since these are provided on the basis of an actuarial valuation for the Company as a whole.
=% The financial statements have not been authenticated by a whole time secretary as required under Section 134 of the Act. The Company’s whole time secretary left the organization w.e.f. 10 March 2023 and the

Company is currently in the process of appointing a whole time secretary as required under Section 203 the Act




36 Related party disclosures (Continued)

(c) Outstanding balances (Rupees in millions)

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Trade payables (Including accruals)
Schloss HMA Private Limited 142.14 67.13
Schloss Chennai Private Limited - 0.01
Schloss Bangalore Private Limited 0.28 0.14
Schloss Udaipur Private Limited 50 -
Trade receivable
Schloss Gandhinagar Private Limited 0.12 0.22
Schloss Chennai Private Limited 0.90
Rei ement (receivable)/pavabl
Schloss HMA Private Limited (15.77) (6.02)
Tulsi Palace Resort Private Limited {1.6T) (0.01)
Inter corporate deposit given
Schloss Bangalore Private Limited - 117.94
Schloss HMA Private Limited 600.00 -
Interest Receivable on Inter corporate deposit
Schloss Bangalore Private Limited - 0.55
Schioss HMA Private Limited 0.18 -
Interest accrued but not due on 10.50% unsecured c ily convertible deb es
BSREP 11l India Ballet I Pte. Ltd- 999.46 478.38
10.50% unsecured comp ily convertible es (at Instrument’s issue value)

5,360.00 5,360.00

BSREP Il India Ballet | Pte, Ltd

(d) Corporate guarantee
Company's fellow subsidiaries i.c. Schloss HMA Private Limited and Leela Palaces and Resorts Limited and the ultimate holding company ie. BSREP 11l India Ballet Pte Ltd. have given corporate guarantee and
fellow subsidiaries also created charge over their total assets for the term loan facility availed by the company.

(e) Management believes the Company's transactions with related parties are at arms lenith.
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